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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 11th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT  
IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
U.S. RE COMPANIES, INC.; a Delaware 
corporation; U.S. RE COMPANIES, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company; and 
TAL PICCIONE, individually,    
 
 Plaintiffs, 
 
vs. 
 
ALAN FELDMAN, individually; ELIAS 
CORREA, individually; RICHARD J. 
LYDECKER, individually; LYDECKER, 
LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC, 
D/B/A LYDECKER DIAZ, a Florida 
limited liability company; LYDECKER 
LLP, a Florida limited liability 
partnership, D/B/A LYDECKER|DIAZ; 
WESTMORELAND EQUITY FUND, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company; SANDY HUTCHENS, A/K/A 
ED RYAN, individually; BERNARD 
FELDMAN, individually; AMERICAN 
ESCROW & SETTLEMENT SERVICES, 
LLC, a Florida limited liability company, 
 
 Defendants. 

GENERAL JURISDICTION 
DIVISION: 
 
CASE NO.: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________/ 
 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiffs U.S. RE COMPANIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, U.S. RE COMPANIES, 

LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and TAL PICCIONE, individually, by and through 

undersigned counsel, hereby sue Defendants ALAN FELDMAN, individually; ELIAS 

CORREA, individually; RICHARD J. LYDECKER, individually; LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA 

& DE ZAYAS, LLC, D/B/A LYDECKER DIAZ, a Florida limited liability company; 

LYDECKER LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, D/B/A LYDECKER|DIAZ, F/D/B/A 

LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC; WESTMORELAND EQUITY FUND, LLC, 
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a Delaware limited liability company; SANDY HUTCHENS, A/K/A ED RYAN, A/K/A Craig 

Hutchens, A/K/A Moishe Hutchens, A/K/A Moishe Alexander, A/K/A Moshe Ben Avraham, 

A/K/A Fred Hayes, A/K/A Mathew Kovce, individually; BERNARD FELDMAN, individually; 

and AMERICAN ESCROW & SETTLEMENT SERVICES, LLC, a Florida limited liability 

company, and allege as follows: 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff U.S. RE COMPANIES, INC. (“U.S. RE/Inc.”) is a corporation organized 

under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business in Pearl River, New 

York. This Plaintiff was incorporated in 1990. 

2. Plaintiff U.S. RE COMPANIES, LLC (“U.S. RE/LLC”) is a limited liability 

company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware and was to have its principal place 

of business in Pearl River, New York. It was formed at the request of Plaintiffs U.S. RE 

Companies, Inc. and Tal Piccione to Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC, D/B/A Lydecker 

Diaz as their counsel in its Miami, Florida office, to receive some of the proceeds of a loan from 

Defendant Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC and expand the reinsurance brokerage business 

based upon the experience and relationships of Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc. 

3. Plaintiff TAL PICCIONE (“Piccione”) is over the age of 18, is sui juris, and is a 

citizen and resident of New York, NY. Plaintiff Piccione is the Chairman, CEO and President of 

U.S. RE/Inc. He loaned U.S. RE/Inc. money to pay advanced lending fees to Defendant 

Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, and was caused reputational harm by the Defendants’ actions.  

4. Defendant ALAN S. FELDMAN (“Alan Feldman”), is over the age of 18, is sui 

juris, and is a citizen and resident of Miami, Florida. At all times material hereto, Defendant 

Alan Feldman held himself out as a partner and shareholder in the law firm Lydecker | Diaz. 
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Defendant Alan Feldman also managed Lydecker Diaz’s client relationship with Hutchens and 

Westmoreland and was Plaintiffs’ counsel. He is a 2004 graduate of Nova Southeastern 

University – Shepard Broad Law Center, and was selected by Super Lawyers as a rising star for 

the years 2012-2016. During his tenure at Lydecker Diaz, Defendant Alan Feldman practiced in 

the areas of business litigation, general business and corporate law, entertainment and sports law, 

and the defense of national class actions. He is the son of Defendant Bernard Feldman. At all 

times relevant hereto, Defendant Alan Feldman was aware of his father’s misconduct, sanctions, 

investigation, and criminal history, as described herein.  

5. Defendant ELIAS CORREA (“Elias Correa”), is over the age of 18, is sui juris, 

and is a citizen and resident of Miami, Florida. At all times material hereto, Defendant Elias 

Correa was a partner in the law firm Lydecker Diaz and worked extensively on matters involving 

Hutchens and Westmoreland, including litigation in which Hutchens and Westmoreland stood 

accused of engaging in a nearly identical fraudulent advance fee lending scheme. He is a 2004 

graduate of Tulane University Law School. Defendant Elias Correa’s practice focused on 

appellate advocacy, banking and commercial finance law, bankruptcy & creditor’s rights, 

complex commercial litigation, corporate & transactional law, mergers and acquisitions.   

6. Defendant RICHARD J. LYDECKER (“Richard Lydecker”) is over the age of 

18, is sui juris, and is a citizen and resident of Miami, Florida. At all times material hereto, 

Defendant Richard Lydecker was the managing member of Defendant LYDECKER, LEE 

BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC. He is a graduate of Thomas M. Cooley Law School. Defendant 

Richard Lydecker’s practice focused on professional liability, bad faith litigation, and complex 

commercial and general civil litigation.  
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7. Defendant LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC, D/B/A 

LYDECKER DIAZ (“Lydecker Diaz”), is a Florida limited liability company that has become a 

full-service national law firm and maintains offices in New York, New Jersey and Pennsylvania 

in addition to its offices in Florida, and has its principal office in Miami, Florida. This Defendant 

formerly conducted business under the name Lydecker Diaz, pursuant to a registration of 

fictitious name filed on July 13, 2015 with the Florida Department of State, Division of 

Corporations. On November 14, 2017, that fictitious name registration was cancelled, and the 

fictitious name Lydecker | Diaz was simultaneously registered. The fictitious name Lydecker | 

Diaz is owned by Defendant Lydecker LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership. As of the date 

of filing this Complaint, Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zaya, LLC is still an active Florida limited 

liability company. According to its website, Lydecker Diaz serves a broad variety of national, 

international, and local businesses, as well as federal, state, and local governmental entities. Its 

website claims that the firm provides vigorous and aggressive representation, but only within 

ethical bounds and in accordance with the highest professional ideals. Lydecker Diaz holds itself 

out to the public, including to its clients, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Mr. Piccione, 

as placing a high priority on training and supervision of its lawyers, emphasizing continual 

professional development. Defendant Lydecker Diaz had a client relationship with Defendants 

Hutchens, a/k/a Ed Ryan, and Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, and provided office space, legal 

assistance and support to them.  

8. At all times material hereto, Lydecker Diaz maintained a satellite Philadelphia 

office was located at One Liberty Place 1650, Market Street, Suite 3600, Philadelphia, PA 

19103, which is identical to the address of Defendant Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC. 
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9. Defendant LYDECKER LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, D/B/A 

LYDECKER|DIAZ, F/D/B/A LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC (“Lydecker 

LLP”) was formed by Defendant Richard Lydecker on May 23, 2017. On November 14, 2017, 

Lydecker LLP registered the fictitious name Lydecker | Diaz. Lydecker | Diaz is the new 

fictitious name for, and mere continuation of its predecessor, Defendant Lydecker, Lee, Berga & 

De Zayas, LLC. Both are controlled by the same person, Defendant Richard Lydecker. Both 

have the same management, personnel, location, clients, and both conduct the same business of 

providing legal services.  

10. Defendant WESTMORELAND EQUITY FUND, LLC (“Westmoreland”) was an 

illegitimate business which defrauded persons, partnerships, and companies that attempted to do 

business with it. It is a Delaware manager-managed limited liability company formed in 2013 

with its principal place of business at 1650 Market Street, Suite 3600, Philadelphia, PA—the 

identical address as the Philadelphia office of Co-Defendant Lydecker Diaz.  

11. Defendant Westmoreland was solely created to serve as the engine of fraud to 

perpetrate an advance fee lender scheme which has been created and refined by Defendant 

Sandy Hutchens and his other co-conspirators, including Defendant Bernard Feldman, and 

whose scheme was protected and assisted by Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Richard 

Lydecker, and Lydecker Diaz. The scheme promised multi-million dollar loans to business 

organizations, for which substantial advance fees were demanded, charged, and paid to 

Defendant Westmoreland, despite the fact that it never had the intention or capacity to make such 

loans, as will be described more fully below.  

12. Defendant SANDY HUTCHENS, A/K/A ED RYAN, individually (“Hutchens”), 

is over the age of 18, is sui juris, is a Canadian citizen and a resident of Toronto, Ontario. He is a 
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lifetime career criminal and the architect of the Westmoreland fraud. He has operated under a 

number of fictitious names, including Craig Hutchens, Moishe Hutchens, Moishe Alexander, 

Moshe Ben Avraham, Fred Hayes, Mathew Kovce, and in the actions complained of and 

described more fully below, as Ed Ryan. Defendant Hutchens’ extensive criminal history was 

known to, or should have been known to, the Lydecker Diaz las firm, Defendants Alan Feldman, 

Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, at the time of the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.  

13. Defendant BERNARD FELDMAN (“Bernard Feldman”) is over the age of 18, is 

sui juris, and is a citizen and resident of Boca Raton, Florida. Defendant Bernard Feldman was a 

major participant in the Westmoreland fraud, which is more fully described below. He is the 

father of Lydecker Diaz attorney and Co-Defendant Alan Feldman.  

14. Defendant AMERICAN ESCROW & SETTLEMENT SERVICES, LLC 

(“American Escrow”) was formed expressly to perpetuate the fraudulent scheme. It is a Florida 

limited liability company formed by Defendant Bernard Feldman on June 23, 2014 with a 

principal place of business at 3701 North 29 Avenue, Suite 2, Hollywood, FL, 33020. Its 

principal, Defendant Bernard Feldman, was barred in April, 2002 from practicing law in 

Michigan, barred in January, 20014 from practicing law in Florida, and barred in May, 2015 

from rendering title insurance services.  

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

15. The amount in controversy exceeds the sum of $15,000.00, exclusive of costs, 

interest, and attorneys’ fees. 

16. Venue is appropriate in this Judicial Circuit because the fraudulent loan 

commitments and fraudulent activities occurred in Florida and this Circuit. The proposed 

fictitious loans were negotiated by attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, 
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from Defendant Lydecker Diaz, in Miami-Dade, and their clients Westmoreland (and its 

managing member Defendant Sandy Hutchens, under the name Ed Ryan, and Defendant Bernard 

Feldman) and American Escrow (and its managing member Defendant Bernard Feldman) with 

the Plaintiffs and their counsel, Broad and Cassel, in Lydecker Diaz’s Miami offices. The 

misrepresentations occurred in Miami-Dade, and the causes of action accrued in Miami-Dade 

County, Florida.  

17. The Court has jurisdiction over Defendants Westmoreland and Hutchens based 

upon Florida’s long arm statute, Fla. Stat. §48.193(1)(a)(1) (operating, conducting, engaging in, 

or carrying on a business or business venture in Florida) and §48.193(1)(a)(2) (coming a tortious 

act within Florida), as described more fully below.  

ALLEGATIONS AS TO ALL COUNTS 

I. DEFENDANT SANDY HUTCHENS, A/K/A “ED RYAN,” AND THE 
EVOLUTION OF HIS ADVANCED FEE LENDING SCHEME 

18. For over a decade, Defendant Sandy Hutchens has been engaged in the 

perpetration of a fraudulent scheme using front corporations to promise loans, knowing that his 

corporations had no intention and no capacity to fund the promised loans. Defendant Hutchens 

conceived of the fraudulent scheme shortly after he was discharged from prison in Canada, after 

being charged and convicted for the crime of fraud. Defendant Hutchens was aided and abetted 

by the gross negligence and fraudulent misrepresentations of lawyers, career criminals, and other 

wrongdoers in order to defraud prospective borrowers out of millions of dollars, which the 

perpetrators would keep for their own use and benefit by means of the fraudulent advanced fee 

lending scheme. Plaintiffs were victims of that fraud.  

19. The fraudulent advanced fee lending scheme which victimized the Plaintiffs was 

made possible by (a) intentional misrepresentations and breaches of fiduciary duties of 
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Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, to Plaintiffs; and (b) 

Defendant Richard Lydecker and Lydecker Diaz’s negligent supervision of its lawyers, 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa.  

A. Defendant Sandy Hutchens’s 2004 Fraud Conviction  

20. In 2004, Defendant Hutchens pled guilty in Canada to four counts of fraud. 

He was given a conditional sentence on each charge, placed on probation and ordered to 

pay restitution. Copies of the records showing his defrauding of four individuals are 

attached as Composite Exhibit 1.  

21. After Defendant Hutchens served his sentence, he developed the fraudulent 

advanced fee lending scheme at issue, and commenced pursuit of the scheme throughout 

North America. To facilitate the frauds, Defendant Hutchens used a number of 

corporations, limited liability companies, and a number of aliases, including Craig 

Hutchens, Moishe Hutchens, Moishe Alexander, Moshe Ben Avraham, Fred Hayes, Mathew 

Kovce, and “Ed Ryan.” Defendant Hutchens used brokers to conceal his fraudulent 

activities and employed reputable law firms to serve the needs of this fraudulent 

scheme.    

22. As Defendant Hutchens’ behavior became bolder, his conduct came to the 

attention of bloggers and news media that revealed Hutchens’ aliases and the details of the 

scheme in various publications.    

B. Media Reporting About Sandy Hutchens’ Advanced Fee Lending Scheme 

23. On September 4, 2008, <<moishealexanderfraud.blogspot.com>> posted an 

article explaining the basics of Defendant Hutchens’ fraudulent advanced fee lending scheme: 

Hutchens was described as holding himself out as a ‘heavy hitter’ in the financing business and 
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with the ability to fund large transactions. Once introduced, Defendant Hutchens sent his victim 

a commitment or term sheet with a vaguely drafted outline of how he would fund the loan. To 

proceed, Defendant Hutchens required the victim to sign the commitment and pay a deposit of 

$50,000 to $75,000 to the “lender.” Defendant Hutchens would then send an unlicensed 

individual to conduct an appraisal, for a fee, and demand a 2% upfront lender’s administration 

fee. Thereafter, he would disappear for a few weeks, claiming to be ‘underwriting the loan.’ He 

would reappear later with new false underwriting conditions from his fictitious joint venture 

lending partners. The victim would be asked for rounds of information or verification which 

culminated in a demand for information that the victim was unable to provide, and the loan effort 

would be terminated. The modus operandi identified in this article is remarkably similar to the 

exact steps that Hutchens followed to defraud the Plaintiffs in this case.  A copy of the posting is 

attached as Exhibit 2.  

24. On October 26, 2008, the Toronto Sun published an article about Defendant 

Hutchens and his alleged fraud, including his claimed conversion to Orthodox Judaism, and his 

continued “business dealings” under his alias Orthodox Jewish name, Moishe Alexander. A copy 

of this article is attached as Exhibit 3. 

25. On March 25, 2009, <<moishealexanderthescamster.blogspot.com>> published a 

blog detailing Defendant Hutchens’ criminal career, and explained how part of his scheme 

involved working closely with prominent U.S. law firms to create the appearance of credibility. 

A copy of the posting is attached as Exhibit 4. 

26. On March 19, 2011, CTV news published an article describing how Defendant 

Hutchens defrauded Tanyia Kingyens out of over $32,000 in the form of advanced fees for a 

loan to build her retirement home. The article provided a detailed history about how he had been 
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perpetrating this scheme for years across North America. It referred to a February, 2011 court 

affidavit from Defendant Hutchens’ former accountant, Martin Lapedus, which stated that 

Defendant Hutchens failed to close hundreds of transactions, never intended to close the loan 

transactions, and that over a four year period of time, he loaned out less than $500,000 but 

collected over $9 million in fee.  A copy of this article is attached as Exhibit 5. 

27. When Defendant Hutchens’ advanced fee lending scheme had significant 

notoriety in Canada, he transferred his focus to the United States. Thereafter, he used over 20 

companies to perpetuate his fraudulent scheme using the identical methodology to that 

implemented in the fraudulent scheme directed to the Plaintiffs, as discussed below.  

C. The 2011 Colorado Federal Case And Resulting $8 Million Jury Verdict 
Against Defendant Hutchens 

28. On April 15, 2011, a class action was filed by CGC Holding Company, LLC, et 

al., against Hutchens, a/k/a Fred Hayes, a/k/a Moishe Alexander, a/k/a Moshe Ben Avraham, his 

wife and daughter, and multiple Hutchens’ entities in the U.S. District Court for the District of 

Colorado (Denver Division), Case No. 1:11-cv-01012-RBJ-KLM. The amended complaint 

alleged a RICO violation, conversion, negligent misrepresentation, constructive trust, and unjust 

enrichment. The national class action was certified.  

29. On May 15, 2017, an $8,421,367.00 jury verdict was entered against Defendant 

Hutchens, his wife, and his daughter on the RICO claim. A copy of the jury verdict is attached as 

Exhibit 6. 

30. On September 26, 2017, the Court entered judgment against Defendant Hutchens, 

his wife, and his daughter, in the amount of $8,421,367, trebled, minus $1,025,000 in pretrial 

settlements, for a total of $24,239,101. A copy of the judgment is attached as Exhibit 7. 
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31. On December 18, 2017, the Court entered an amended and final judgment against 

Defendant Hutchens, his wife, and his daughter, in the total amount of $24,239,101.1 A copy of 

the final judgment is attached as Exhibit 8.  

D. Defendant Hutchens Is Denied Entry Into the United States as a Result of His 
Extensive Criminal History  

32. On January 16, 2013, Defendant Hutchens applied for admission to the United 

States, to travel to Fort Lauderdale, Florida. At the preflight inspection, he was referred to 

“Passport Control Secondary.” During questioning, it was revealed that he had an extensive 

criminal past. The United States Department of Homeland Security denied Defendant Hutchens’s 

entry into the United States. A copy of the withdrawal of application for admission/consular 

notification is attached as Exhibit 9. Hutchens has not since entered the United States. 

II. DEFENDANT BERNARD FELDMAN BECAME AN ACTIVE PARTICIPANT IN 
THE ADVANCED FEE LENDING SCHEME 

A. Defendant Bernard Feldman: Disbarred Attorney 

33. Defendant Bernard Feldman, Defendant Alan Feldman’s father, is a disbarred 

attorney in both Michigan and Florida. Before his disbarment in Michigan, Bernard Feldman had 

a 20 year disciplinary history that included deceiving his clients and converting their money. 

34. On August 21, 1993, Defendant Bernard Feldman was suspended from practicing 

law in Michigan for 30 days due to neglect of a client’s case and making false statements to his 

client. A copy of the notice of suspension is attached as Exhibit 10. 

35. On November 22, 1995, Defendant Bernard Feldman was suspended from 

practicing law in Michigan for 90 days as a result of neglecting his client’s case, settling the 

                                                            
1  The amended and final judgment identifies additional property owned by Hutchens and his 
family to be added to the trust, awards attorney’s fees to the plaintiffs in the amount of 
$24,239,101 plus interest, awards costs against Hutchens and his family in the amount of 
$33,237.89, and awards prejudgment interest in the amount of $737,911.68. 
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matter without his client’s knowledge, and making false representations to his client regarding 

the settlement. A copy of the notice of suspension is attached as Exhibit 11. 

36. On December 21, 2000, Defendant Bernard Feldman was suspended from 

practicing law in Michigan for 60 days due to professional misconduct because he had engaged 

in the practice of law while still suspended from a prior incident. A copy of the final notice of 

suspension is attached as Exhibit 12. 

37. On May 4, 2001, Defendant Bernard Feldman was suspended from practicing law 

in Michigan for 90 days due to his failure to maintain an interest-bearing account for funds 

separate from his own funds, failure to deposit a settlement check into a separate account, and 

failure to promptly pay his client her settlement proceeds.  A copy of the notice of suspension is 

attached as Exhibit 13. 

38. On April 30, 2002, the Michigan Attorney Discipline Board (the “Board”) entered 

an Opinion affirming revocation of Defendant Bernard Feldman’s license to practice law for 

engaging in serious neglect and for fraudulent conduct with respect to clients Kimberly Strawder 

and Joe Pizik. The Board found that Defendant Bernard Feldman neglected Ms. Strawder’s case, 

made misrepresentations to her regarding her suit, falsely told her that her suit was dismissed due 

to court error, failed to file an appeal, and then lied to her by telling her that an appeal was 

proceeding when there was no appeal. With respect to Mr. Pizik, the Board found that Defendant 

Bernard Feldman endorsed his client’s name on a $10,000 check without Mr. Pizik’s knowledge 

or authority and then failed to turn over the proceeds to Mr. Pizik. Copies of the notice of 

revocation and restitution and the Board Opinion are attached as Composite Exhibit 14. 

39. On January 29, 2004, the Florida Bar entered an Opinion disbarring Defendant 

Bernard Feldman from the practice of law. A copy of the Opinion is attached as Exhibit 15.  
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40. Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Richard Lydecker, nor any other employee of 

Lydecker Diaz, disclosed to the Plaintiffs the existence of Bernard Feldman’s disbarment in 

Michigan or Florida.  

41. Following his multiple disbarments, Defendant Bernard Feldman turned his 

efforts towards title companies.  

B. Defendant Bernard Feldman: Disbarred Title Agent 

42. On June 23, 2014, Defendant Bernard Feldman formed American Escrow as a 

Florida limited liability company with its principal address in Boca Raton, Florida. American 

Escrow became the sole repository to which the victims of the advanced fee lending scheme sent 

their payments for the alleged forthcoming loans. The victims’ payments to American Escrow 

ultimately inured to the benefit of Defendant Westmoreland, Defendant Bernard Feldman, 

Lydecker Diaz, and Lydecker Diaz attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker.  

43. Upon information and belief, it is Plaintiffs’ understanding that American Escrow 

was never a truly independent escrow company, but rather served as the de facto ‘bookkeeping 

arm’ of Defendant Westmoreland. Defendant Bernard Feldman, who serves as Westmoreland’s 

agent, was the founder and member of American Escrow.  

44. On May 26, 2015, the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida entered a 

consent order in In The Matter of: Bernard Feldman, Case No. 165934-14-AG, ordering 

Defendant Bernard Feldman to cease and desist from acting as a title agent without a license, 

permanently barring him from applying for licensure and appointment with the Florida 

Department of Financial Services, and permanently barring him from participating with any 

entity licensed or regulated under the Florida Insurance Code. A copy of the consent order is 

attached as Exhibit 16. 
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45. No Defendant ever disclosed to any Plaintiff the existence of Bernard Feldman’s 

disbarment as a title agent.  

46. However, despite being barred on May 26, 2015 from acting as a title agent, 

Defendant Bernard Feldman continued to operate Bernard Feldman PA, which had been formed 

in November, 2011 for the stated purpose of “operation as a Florida licensed title agent” with a 

principal place of business at 3701 N. 29 Avenue, Hollywood, Florida. On April 27, 2015, 

Bernard Feldman PA changed its principal address to a residence located at 7234 Panache Way, 

in Boca Raton, Florida.    

47. On June 8, 2015, Defendant Bernard Feldman was arrested on felony counts 

including two counts of grand theft, and organized fraud (for the transaction of insurance without 

a license). An investigation conducted in coordination with the Florida Department of Financial 

Services’ Division of Insurance Fraud revealed that Defendant Bernard Feldman was transacting 

insurance business and closings with no agent or title agency license and converting consumers’ 

money. The investigation revealed at least three instances wherein he obtained funds from 

consumers for settlement charges including title insurance and taxes, but converted the money. 

In total, Defendant Bernard Feldman diverted nearly $22,000 for his own personal use. 

Defendant Bernard Feldman pled nolo contendere. Adjudication was withheld, and he was 

placed on probation for six years. Further, Defendant Bernard Feldman was ordered to pay 

restitution and the costs of the investigation.  Copies of the criminal records from Bernard 

Feldman’s 2015 arrest are attached as Composite Exhibit 17. 

48. No Defendant ever disclosed to any Plaintiff the existence of Bernard Feldman’s 

conviction.  
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49. Defendant Bernard Feldman is the father of Co-Defendant Attorney Alan 

Feldman.  

III. DEFENDANTS SANDY HUTCHENS A/K/A “ED RYAN” AND BERNARD 
FELDMAN EXPAND THE FRAUDULENT ADVANCED FEE LENDING 
SCHEME 

A. Formation of Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC As The Engine of The 
Advanced Fee Lending Scheme 

50. To continue his fraudulent misconduct, Defendant Hutchens caused Defendant 

Westmoreland to be formed on March 14, 2013 as a Delaware limited liability company. 

Defendant Westmoreland’s business address became One Liberty Place, 1650 Market Street, 36th 

Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103. One Liberty Place, 1650 Market Street, 36th Floor, Philadelphia 

PA 19103 is also the business address of Defendant Lydecker Diaz’s Philadelphia office. 

Defendant Hutchens ran his fraudulent scheme through Defendant Westmoreland, using the false 

alias, “Ed Ryan.” 

51. During the entire time that Defendant Lydecker Diaz represented Defendant 

Westmoreland, not a single Lydecker Diaz attorney who worked on the 36th floor of 1650 

Market Street in Philadelphia, walked from its office to Defendant Westmorland’s office to meet 

“Ed Ryan”, nor did they attempt to confirm the bona fides of this company.    

B. The 2015 Florida Federal Case Against Hutchens For Perpetuation of The 
Advanced Fee Lending Scheme 

52. In 2015, another victim of the fraudulent advanced fee lending scheme, David 

Antoniono Investments, LLC, sued Defendant Hutchens. On June 10, 2015, this victim filed a 

complaint against Sandy Hutchens, a/k/a Fred Hayes, a/k/a Moishe Alexander, a/k/a Moshe Ben 

Avraham, a/k/a Matthew Kovce, the Law Offices of Manny Singh P.A., and others in the United 

States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Case No. 0:15-cv-61233-WZ (Judge 
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William J. Zloch). The amended complaint alleges a violation of RICO, and the case remains 

pending.  

53. No Defendant ever disclosed to any Plaintiff the existence of this case.  

C. The 2015 Miami-Based Advanced Fee Lending Scheme Perpetuated, Concealed 
And Protected by Lydecker Diaz Attorneys Alan Feldman and Elias Correa 

54. In 2015, Defendants Hutchens and Bernard Feldman, aided and abetted by 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, implemented the 

fraudulent advanced fee lending scheme against the owners of a nursery in Miami-Dade County, 

Florida at the same time that the federal advanced fee lending scheme case in Florida was 

pending against Hutchens.  

55. In March 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman referred the nursery victims to 

Defendant Westmoreland to discuss a series of prospective loans for their nursery.  

56. On April 8, 2015, the nursery victims met with Defendant Alan Feldman at the 

Lydecker Diaz office to discuss their loan needs.  

57. On June 16, 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman brokered the initial call to Defendant 

Hutchens under the false name of “Ed Ryan” to discuss prospective loans from Defendant 

Westmoreland. “Ed Ryan” claimed to be enthusiastic about the prospect of refinancing the 

nursery’s debt and assured the nursery victims that he was confident that he would be able to 

close the transaction on time.  

58. On June 29, 2015, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as managing member 

of Defendant Westmoreland, issued a commitment letter for a first nursery loan in the amount of 

$4.1 million loan. The letter directed that all fees be paid to American Escrow, the title company 

controlled by Defendant Alan Feldman’s father, Defendant Bernard Feldman, notwithstanding 

that Defendant Bernard Feldman had been barred by the Department of Business Regulation for 
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life by reason of his fraudulent activity and had been arrested earlier that month for crimes 

related to the fraudulent obtaining of money. Defendant Westmoreland’s address at the bottom of 

the letter is identified as 1650 Market Street, 36th Floor, Philadelphia—the identical address of 

Lydecker Diaz’s Philadelphia office. 

59. On August 5, 2015, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as managing 

member of Defendant Westmoreland, issued a proposed second mortgage/commitment to the 

nursery victims for a revolving line of credit in the amount of $20 million.  

60. On August 11, 2015, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, scheduled his 

“customary in-person due diligence” to be performed by Defendant Bernard Feldman and his 

title insurance company, Bernard Feldman PA. When Defendant Bernard Feldman went to the 

nursery victims’ property as a representative of Bernard Feldman PA, to conduct his “due 

diligence,” he did so without a license and after having been permanently barred from acting as a 

title agent and in the manner in which he was acting. See Exhibit 15.  

61. After Defendant Bernard Feldman met with the nursery victims, they noticed the 

same last name of the lawyer and Bernard Feldman, and contacted Defendant Bernard Feldman 

who confirmed that Defendant Alan Feldman was his son. 

62. On August 14, 2015 and again on September 18, 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman, 

using Defendant Lydecker Diaz letterhead, sent the nursery victims two separate waivers of 

conflicts pursuant to Rule 4-1.7 of the Florida Rules of Professional Conduct in relation to the 

two loans. Both waivers advised that Defendant Lydecker Diaz served as legal counsel for both 

Defendant Westmoreland and the victims, but neither waiver disclosed that “Ed Ryan” was 

Hutchens, that Defendant Westmoreland was running the advance loan fee scheme, that 

Defendant Bernard Feldman had been criminally convicted for financial crimes and was barred 
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from acting as a title agent without a license, that Defendant Lydecker Diaz was intimately aware 

of the scheme through Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, or that Defendant Lydecker 

Diaz’s attorneys were breaching their ethical obligations and fiduciary duties to their clients by 

such failures.  

63. On August 22, 2015, the nursery victims encountered a negative post on LinkedIn 

about Westmoreland operating a fraudulent scheme. The nursery victims then contacted 

Defendant Alan Feldman, who assured the victims that Westmoreland was a legitimate company, 

and “Ed Ryan” had authorized him to contact LinkedIn directly and have the comments 

removed.  

64. On June 24, 2016, Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, sent a notice of breach asserting 

that: “the file is on hold until such time we are provided copies of the wire confirmations for the 

outstanding legal fee on all three files [for Defendant Lydecker Diaz’s fees]. This is a term of 

each commitment and you have 10 days to cure the breach.”   

65. On July 5, 2016, Defendant Bernard Feldman sent an email to the nursery victims 

stating that “[Westmoreland] has requested we move this transaction forward as soon as possible. 

In that regard I have reviewed the drop box and request the following information . . .” 

66. On September 8, 2016, Defendant Alan Feldman sent an email to the nursery 

victims, with copies to Defendants Bernard Feldman, “Ed Ryan”, Defendant Elias Correa, and 

others advising that he “received authority from [Westmoreland] to convey to you that all 

conditions under the Commitment have been satisfied and the LOC pursuant to the Commitment 

is approved. . . . Notwithstanding the above, [Westmoreland] has conveyed to us that in the event 

a lawsuit is filed pursuant to the letter received by our office on September 1, 2016, 

[Westmoreland] has informed us that this approval will be rescinded, withdrawn, and void.” 
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67. The nursery victims began to uncover the pattern of fraudulent behavior. They 

threatened litigation unless their funds were returned to them. Ultimately, Lydecker Diaz 

returned the funds to them, and no lawsuit was filed.  

68. No Defendant ever disclosed to any Plaintiff the existence of the nursery scheme.   

D. The 2016 Colorado Advanced Fee Lending Scheme Case Against Hutchens, 
Westmoreland, and Bernard Feldman 

69. On May 20, 2016, Leathem Stearn filed a complaint against Defendants 

Westmoreland, “Ed Ryan”, and Bernard Feldman in the United States District Court of 

Colorado, at case number 1:16-cv-01211, alleging fraud, fraudulent concealment, civil theft, 

conversion, civil conspiracy, and breach of contract.  

70. On June 10, 2016, Lydecker Diaz lawyer, Defendant Elias Correa, filed his entry 

of appearance for Defendants Westmoreland, Hutchens, using the name Ed Ryan, and Bernard 

Feldman. A copy of the notice of appearance is attached as Exhibit 18.  

71. This lawsuit was promptly resolved by means of a confidential settlement within 

approximately two months of Elias Correa’s notice of appearance.  

72. This lawsuit was never disclosed to the Plaintiffs by any Defendant at any time.  

E. The 2017 Texas Advanced Fee Lending Scheme Case Against Westmoreland, 
Ed Ryan, American Escrow and Bernard Feldman 

73. On April 17, 2017, Campanile Investments LLC and Joaquin Juan Bosco Garza 

Muguerza filed a complaint against Defendants Westmoreland, “Ed Ryan”, American Escrow 

and Bernard Feldman, in the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, San 

Antonio Division, at case number 5:17-CV-337, alleging fraud, negligent misrepresentation, civil 

conspiracy, and breach of contract. 
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74. According to the Complaint, plaintiff Campanile Investments began negotiating 

the terms of a $7.5 million loan from Westmoreland. The plaintiff negotiated with Ed Ryan, 

Westmoreland’s manager, and Bernard Feldman, Westmoreland’s agent and financial consultant. 

The law firm of Lydecker Diaz represented Westmoreland in the negotiations. See case number 

5:17-CV-337, DE 1 ¶¶ 16-19. 

F. The 2017 Pennsylvania Advanced Fee Lending Scheme Case Against American 
Escrow, Elias Correa, Alan Feldman, Bernard Feldman, Sandy Hutchens, and 
Lydecker Diaz 

75. On October 11, 2017, Gary and Linda Stevens filed a complaint against 

Defendants American Escrow, Elias Correa, Alan Feldman, Bernard Feldman, Sandy Hutchens, 

Lydecker Diaz, Westmoreland Equity, and others, in the United States District Court for the 

Eastern District of Pennsylvania, at case number 2:17-cv-04529, alleging four counts of RICO 

violations. 

76. According to the Complaint, plaintiffs Gary and Linda Stevens began negotiating 

the terms of a $13,900,000CDN refinance loan from Westmoreland. The plaintiffs negotiated 

with “Ed Ryan” as the managing member of Westmoreland, and were instructed to make all of 

their payments to American Escrow. “Ed Ryan” instructed the Plaintiffs to contact 

Westmoreland’s attorneys, Lydecker Diaz. 

IV. PLAINTIFFS U.S. RE COMPANIES, INC., U.S. RE COMPANIES, LLC, AND 
TAL PICCIONE BECOME VICTIMS OF THE ADVANCED FEE LENDING 
SCHEME 

77. Plaintiff Tal P. Piccione is and was at all relevant times the Chairman, CEO, and 

President of U.S. RE/Inc.  

78. Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc., directly or through its subsidiaries, engages in reinsurance 

brokerage, investment banking, underwriting, claims, risk, management of captive insurance 
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companies, and businesses consulting—including catastrophe modeling, probable max loss 

analysis estimation, risk-based capital analysis, financial benefit of reinsurance counsel, risk 

transfer analysis, enterprise risk analysis, and dynamic financial analysis.  

79. Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc. has worked with Defendants Alan Feldman, Richard 

Lydecker, and Lydecker Diaz, as their primary attorneys for many years. Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc. 

reposed its trust and confidence in Defendants Alan Feldman and Richard Lydecker, and relied 

upon their fiduciary and ethical responsibilities. During the course of their legal relationship, 

Defendant Elias Correa also worked very closely with Alan Feldman and Richard Lydecker in 

handling matters for Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc. 

80. On or about August 21, 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman introduced Plaintiff 

U.S. RE/Inc. to Defendant Westmoreland, and its chief executive Defendant Hutchens, 

acting as Ed Ryan, by means of an email. Defendant Alan Feldman advised Messrs. 

Piccione and Fedor that Defendant Westmoreland was a client of Defendant Lydecker 

Diaz, and that he was personally handling Westmoreland’s legal representation. 

Defendant Alan Feldman failed to disclose that Defendant Hutchens, a career criminal, was 

operating Defendant Westmoreland as the engine of his fraudulent advance fee lending 

scheme. Defendant Alan Feldman also failed to disclose that his father, Defendant Bernard 

Feldman, a career criminal, a disbarred lawyer, and barred title agent who was recently 

charged with criminal fraud and pled nolo contendere, was involved in and with 

Defendants Westmoreland and Hutchens and their fraudulent scheme.  

81. Plaintiff Piccione conducted an internet search on Defendant Westmoreland 

that revealed negative information. Plaintiff Piccione called Defendant Alan Feldman, 

whom he trusted and relied upon, to inquire about the negative information. Defendant 



 
 

 
Page 22 of 49 

{10901/00517096.1} 
 

Alan Feldman reassured Plaintiff Piccione that his concerns were unnecessary, that this 

was “false information” online, and he and Defendant Lydecker Diaz were in the 

process of causing the information to be removed from the web. Plaintiff Piccione, on 

behalf of all Plaintiffs, relied on Defendant Alan Feldman’s reassurances, and proceeded 

to attempt to secure loans from Defendant Westmoreland for Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc.    

82. The online accusation made against Defendant Hutchens and 

Westmoreland turned out to be true in all material respects. Neither Lydekcer Diaz, nor 

its lawyers Defendant Alan Feldman and Defendant Elias Correa, ever caused the 

removal of the allegedly false information from the internet as represented, or corrected 

the fraudulent concealment of the true nature of Defendant Westmoreland’s activities, 

or Defendant Bernard Feldman’s role in the same. 

83. Shortly after the decision to work with Defendant Westmoreland, Plaintiffs 

began requesting a meeting with Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan. Despite 

numerous requests, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, would not agree to a 

personal meeting, and continually provided one excuse or another for his inability to 

meet.  

84. As Plaintiffs were discussing the possibility of securing a loan with 

Defendant Westmoreland, Plaintiff U.S. RE/Inc. sold the majority of its reinsurance 

business, retaining one large reinsurance account and the rest of its business. Plaintiffs 

conveyed the fact of this sale to Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan. Defendant 

Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, then suggested that the loan move forward so that 

additional capital provided by the loan proceeds could be used to fund substantial 

expansion, and suggested that Plaintiffs create a new entity, U.S. RE/LLC, to receive a 
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portion of the Westmoreland funding. The pre-existing reinsurance client would remain 

with U.S. RE/Inc. with funding to be used for both organic and non-organic growth, i.e., to 

create new teams of reinsurance broking and support personnel and to make investment and 

acquisition in other companies or enterprises.  

85. Thereafter, Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through Defendant Alan Feldman, formed 

U.S. RE/LLC on behalf of Plaintiffs, at the same time that Defendant Lydecker Diaz was 

representing Defendants Westmoreland and Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, in their negotiations 

with the Plaintiffs.  

86. On September 1, 2015, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as 

managing member of Defendant Westmoreland, provided a Letter of Intent to U.S. 

RE/LLC for a loan in the amount of $10 million. The Letter of Intent, countersigned by 

U.S. RE/LLC on September 14, 2015, directed that all fees be paid to Defendant Bernard 

Feldman’s company, Defendant American Escrow.  

87. On September 18, 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman signed and sent 

Plaintiffs a proposed waiver of conflicts regarding Defendant Lydecker Diaz’s 

representation of both Plaintiffs and Defendant Westmoreland. The waiver did not disclose 

that “Ed Ryan” was really Defendant Hutchens, that Defendant Westmoreland was running a 

fraudulent advance loan fee scheme, that Defendant Bernard Feldman had been disbarred as a 

lawyer, barred from title insurance and charged with financial crimes to which he pleaded nolo 

contendere. A copy of the September 18, 2015 waiver is attached as Exhibit 19.  

88. On September 18, 2015, Defendant Bernard Feldman sent an email to 

Plaintiffs, stating: “I am appointed by [Defendant Westmoreland] to visit your offices 

and engage in a due diligence investigation and prepare a report with recommendations 
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concerning the application for financing you have initiated. Would it be convenient to 

discuss this on Monday afternoon?” Thereafter, Defendant Bernard Feldman presented 

himself to the Plaintiffs to create the appearance of legitimate due diligence. 

89. Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, reported to Plaintiffs that actual funds 

would come from American Escrow, headed by Defendant Bernard Feldman, and that it had 

warehoused the funds that would ultimately be loaned. These statements were untrue and known 

Defendant Hutchens to be untrue when made. 

90. On October 6, 2015, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as managing 

member of Defendant Westmoreland, issued a new commitment to U.S. RE/LLC for a $12 

million loan. It was countersigned by Plaintiff U.S. RE/LLC.  

91. On October 9, 2015, Defendant Alan Feldman sent Plaintiff Piccione an email 

attaching a purported proof of funds letter from Defendant American Escrow. The letter stated 

that Defendant Westmoreland “has available to it for lending purposes in excess of 

$248,626,500.00 presently.” Defendants Alan Feldman and Lydecker Diaz knew or should have 

known that the representation was false.  

92. On October 9, 2015, Plaintiff Piccione received an e-mail from a colleague stating 

“I have been contacted by our lawyer telling me to be cautious with Westmoreland Equity Fund 

LLC. Apparently they would have a reputation of an upfront fee scammer.” Plaintiff Piccione 

immediately forwarded the email to Defendant Alan Feldman. Defendant Alan Feldman 

responded that he had already discussed the negative report “many times” with Plaintiff 

Piccione, and reminded Plaintiffs of the assurances on this subject from Defendant Alan Feldman 

and Defendant Lydecker Diaz. Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, also responded to the 

email from Plaintiff Piccione and stated that he was aware of the derogatory and slanderous posts 
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about Defendant Westmoreland, and that he had asked his attorneys, Defendant Lydecker Diaz, 

to deal with the articles. Defendant Alan Feldman was copied on Hutchens’ messages. This 

statement was untrue and known by Defendant Alan Feldman to be untrue. 

93. On October 9, 2015, after Defendant Alan Feldman falsely reassured Plaintiff 

Piccione of Defendant Westmoreland’s legitimacy, Plaintiff Piccione replied to the colleague 

who had expressed his concern regarding Defendant Westmoreland. Plaintiff Piccione confirmed 

that Defendant Westmoreland had been recommended by “one of the most prominent law firms, 

Lydecker Diaz.” Plaintiff Piccione described his absolute trust and confidence in Defendant Alan 

Feldman and conveyed that he had been reassured that Defendant Alan Feldman’s own father, 

Defendant Bernard Feldman, would be working closely with Defendant Westmoreland. 

94. To delay funding, Defendant Westmoreland asked for an expert analysis of U.S. 

RE Companies, Inc.’s business plan, and a valuation. In purported anticipation of the loan, 

Defendant Hutchens, under his alias Ed Ryan, asked Plaintiffs to identify three firms to review 

its business plan. Among the names provided in response, Plaintiffs identified Weiser Mazars, 

LLP (“Weiser”), which was selected by Defendant Westmoreland to conduct the review. Weiser 

issued a post-closing business valuation report, estimating that after deducting the loan proceeds, 

the value of a 100% ownership interest in the voting common equity of US RE/LLC as of 

December 31, 2015, was $6.586 million (rounded). 

95. When the Weiser report was transmitted to Defendant Hutchens, using his alias 

Ed Ryan, the Defendant advised that he did not understand the report, and that the conclusions 

were unacceptable. Thereafter, Defendant Hutchens, using his alias Ed Ryan, retained Andersen 

Tax to do a further analysis at Plaintiffs’ expense.  
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96. On April 8, 2016, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as managing member 

of Defendant Westmoreland, issued a second amended commitment to U.S. RE/LLC for a $12 

million loan in the form of a revolving line of credit. It was counter-signed by Plaintiff Piccione 

on behalf of U.S. RE/LLC. Thereafter, the underwriting process claimed by Defendant 

Westmoreland was purportedly continuing. 

97. On December 13, 2016, Defendant Alan Feldman signed and sent 

Plaintiffs a proposed second waiver of conflicts. The waiver fraudulently failed to 

disclose any of the known circumstances surrounding the misconduct of Defendants 

Hutchens and Bernard Feldman, including their encounters with law enforcement or 

their criminal convictions for the fraudulent advance fee lending scheme. A copy of the 

December 13, 2016 waiver is attached as Exhibit 20. 

98. On January 3, 2017, Plaintiff Piccione sent an e-mail to Defendant Alan Feldman 

expressing his concern that something was inherently wrong with the Westmoreland deal. 

Plaintiff Piccione noted that the Plaintiffs had not received any proof of funding despite the 

issuance of the first commitment months before. He concluded his e-mail advising that he was 

poised to go to the authorities, but wanted to first discuss the situation with Defendant Alan 

Feldman. 

99. On January 17, 2017, Defendant Alan Feldman signed and sent Plaintiffs a 

proposed third waiver of conflicts. Once again, no disclosures regarding his Co-Defendants 

were made. A copy of the January 17, 2017 waiver is attached as Exhibit 21. 

100. By January 17, 2017, Defendant Richard Lydecker had fully joined the 

cover up of Defendant Westmoreland’s fraud.  
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101. On January 17, 2017, Plaintiff Piccione, individually and on behalf of the other 

Plaintiffs, attended a dinner meeting with Defendant Richard Lydecker. During that meeting, 

Richard Lydecker and Plaintiff Piccione discussed the Westmoreland transaction and its status. 

Defendant Richard Lydecker confirmed that the transaction was moving forward, and he was 

pleased with its progress, concealing all of the fraud and misconduct that had come to the 

attention to the law firm, Defendant Lydecker Diaz.  

102. On February 6, 2017, Defendant Hutchens, acting as Ed Ryan, as managing 

member of Defendant Westmoreland, issued a third amended commitment to Plaintiff U.S. 

RE/LLC for a $12 million loan in the form of a revolving line of credit, counter-signed by U.S. 

RE/LLC. 

103. One of the companies which Plaintiffs were attempting to purchase was 

AssureNet. The principals of AssureNet expressed concern over the passage of time that 

it was taking for U.S. RE/LLC to secure the Westmoreland loan. To assuage their 

concerns, and relying upon Defendant Alan Feldman’s continued reassurances that the 

loan was forthcoming, Plaintiff Piccione personally loaned $125,000 to AssureNet.   

104. Throughout the course of their negotiations, there were numerous 

telephone calls amongst Plaintiff Piccione on behalf of the Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’ 

attorneys Broad & Cassel, Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa of Defendant 

Lydecker Diaz, Barbara Leuin, Defendant Bernard Feldman, and occasionally Defendant 

Hutchens, using his alias Ed Ryan, regarding the ongoing status of the Westmoreland 

loan. Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, 

participated in approximately 80% of such calls. Plaintiffs were repeatedly assured that 

everything was progressing smoothly.  
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105. On February 15, 2017, Defendant Alan Feldman requested Plaintiff Piccione 

to sign a fourth waiver of conflicts on behalf of the Plaintiffs regarding Defendant 

Lydecker Diaz’s simultaneous representation of Plaintiffs and Defendant Westmoreland. 

The waiver fraudulently failed to disclose that “Ed Ryan” was really Defendant Hutchens, that 

Defendant Westmoreland was running a fraudulent advance loan fee scheme, that Defendant 

Bernard Feldman had been disbarred as a lawyer, barred from title insurance and charged with 

financial crimes which he pleaded nolo contendere. A copy of the February 15, 2017 waiver is 

attached as Exhibit 22. 

106. From September 16, 2015, through October 21, 2016, Plaintiffs paid 

Defendant Westmoreland, through American Escrow, a total of $463,500 in fraudulently 

obtained advance fees and costs: 

Date Amount paid Alleged purpose of payment 

09/16/15 $13,500 processing and escrow fees 

10/19/15 $55,000 execution fee on the account 

11/13/15 $38,500 balance of the execution fee 

03/14/16 $167,000 cancellation of first deal; broker fees 

04/08/16 $117,500 new deal and other fees 

05/12/16 $20,000 Defendant Lydecker Diaz legal fees 

08/13/16 $10,000 for “Andersen fees” 

10/21/16 $42,000 Defendant Lydecker Diaz legal fees 

107. Additionally, Plaintiffs are indebted to various entities for substantial out-of-

pocket expenses. For example, Plaintiffs owe approximately $224,000 in unpaid fees to Broad & 

Cassel (which represented the Plaintiffs with respect to its representation of the Plaintiffs in 
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negotiating the loans); $50,000 in unpaid fees to Weiser (for the first business valuation of U.S. 

RE/LLC); and $25,000 in unpaid fees to Andersen (for the second business valuation of U.S. 

RE/LLC). 

108. Plaintiff Piccione personally made two payments, on April 8, 2016 and October 

21, 2016, totaling nearly $160,000, on behalf of U.S. RE/Inc. as a part of the above payments to 

Defendant Westmoreland.  

109. Because Defendant Westmoreland’s loan was never intended to be funded, and 

did not have the capacity to close, U.S. RE/LLC lost the opportunity to purchase multiple entities 

with which it was negotiating. The lost opportunities resulted in $20 million of investments that 

would have grown thereafter, as revenue increased to over $40 million. U.S. RE/LLC was valued 

at over $6.3 million and was projected to make more than $20 million by 2018 based upon its 

anticipated funding. Because of Plaintiffs’ reliance on the fraudulent misrepresentations of 

Defendants Westmoreland, Hutchens, and Bernard Feldman that the Westmoreland loan would 

be funded, Plaintiffs were foreclosed from identifying and pursuing additional sources of 

funding.  

110. Additionally, the embarrassment of dealing with the fraudulent operation of 

Westmoreland has caused Plaintiff Tal Piccione severe reputational loss and damage.  

111. In June, 2017, Plaintiffs recognized that they had fallen prey to the advance fee 

lending scheme of Defendants Westmoreland, Hutchens, and Bernard Feldman. Plaintiffs also 

recognized that the scheme to which they had become victims was perpetuated and concealed by 

their attorneys Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker. 
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COUNT I: GROSS NEGLIGENCE AND  
FAILURE TO DISCLOSE KNOWN INFORMATION 

(Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker) 

112. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

113. As set forth in detail above, Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, had intimate knowledge about—and facilitated the perpetuation 

of—the advance fee scheme propagated by Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, 

operating under the alias Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow.  

114. The composite of circumstances, taken together, constituted gross negligence 

because at the same time that Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and 

Richard Lydecker facilitated the forward movement of the fraudulent advance fee scheme, they 

were also the attorneys for the Plaintiffs, which were victims of the scheme. 

115. Defendant Alan Feldman knew that his father, Defendant Bernard Feldman, was a 

disbarred attorney who had also been disciplined by the Florida Department of Financial 

Services for fraudulent activities related to title insurance. Defendant Alan Feldman knew of his 

father’s history of stealing funds from his clients through various means.  

116. Defendant Elias Correa defended Defendant Sandy Hutchens, operating under the 

alias Ed Ryan, in the Leathem Stearn case (in the United States District Court of Colorado, Case 

No. 1:16-cv-01211), which involved allegations of an identical advance fee scheme as the one in 

this matter.  

117. Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman 

Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, evidenced a conscious disregard and/or a willful and 
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wanton disregard of the consequences of withholding critical information from the Plaintiffs as 

their clients. 

118. The actions of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, 

Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, resulted in financial injury to 

Plaintiffs in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate result of the law firm’s gross 

negligence and failure to disclose information known to them, in order to cause Plaintiffs to enter 

into a sham loan transaction and pay advance lender fees. The damages include payments made, 

debts incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost profits as described above. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees 

pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court deems just and proper.   

COUNT II: NEGLIGENCE 

(Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker) 

119. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

120. As set forth in detail above, Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, had intimate knowledge about—and facilitated the perpetuation 

of—the advance fee scheme propagated by Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, 

operating under the alias Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow.  

121. Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, were employed 

by Defendant Lydecker Diaz. 
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122. Defendants Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, had a duty to provide competent representation and refrain from 

making false statements of material fact to their clients, the Plaintiffs. 

123.  Defendants Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, neglected their duties to provide competent representation and 

refrain from making false statements of material fact to their clients, the Plaintiffs. Specifically, 

at the same time that Defendants Lydecker Diaz, and its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, 

and Richard Lydecker, facilitated the forward movement of the fraudulent advance fee scheme, 

they were also the attorneys for the Plaintiffs, which were victims of the scheme. 

124. Defendant Alan Feldman knew that his father, Defendant Bernard Feldman, was a 

disbarred attorney who had also been disciplined by the Florida Department of Financial 

Services for fraudulent activities related to title insurance. Defendant Alan Feldman knew of his 

father’s history of stealing funds from his clients through various means.  

125. Defendant Elias Correa defended Defendant Sandy Hutchens, operating under the 

alias Ed Ryan, in the Leathem Stearn case (in the United States District Court of Colorado, Case 

No. 1:16-cv-01211), which involved allegations of an identical advance fee scheme as the one in 

this matter.  

126. Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, Defendants Alan 

Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, negligently withheld critical information from the 

Plaintiffs as their clients. 

127. The negligence of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, 

Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, resulted in financial injury to 

Plaintiffs in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate result of the law firm’s negligence 
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and failure to disclose information known to them, in order to cause Plaintiffs to enter into a 

sham loan transaction and pay advance lender fees. The damages include payments made, debts 

incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost profits, as described above. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees 

pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court deems just and proper.   

COUNT III: BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY 

(Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker) 
 

128. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

129. As set forth in detail above, Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, had intimate knowledge about—and facilitated the perpetuation 

of—the advance fee scheme propagated by Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, 

operating under the alias Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow.  

130. Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, were employed 

by Defendant Lydecker Diaz. 

131. A fiduciary relationship existed between Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan 

Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, as attorneys, and their clients, Plaintiffs U.S. 

RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione. 

132. Defendants Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, had a fiduciary duty to not knowingly make any false statements 

of material fact to their clients, the Plaintiffs.  
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133. Defendants Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, also had a fiduciary duty not to fail to disclose material facts to 

their clients, the Plaintiffs, when disclosure was necessary to avoid assisting the fraudulent acts 

by Defendants Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, Westmoreland, and 

American Escrow. 

134.  Defendants Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, neglected their fiduciary duties by facilitating the forward 

movement of the fraudulent advance fee scheme of Defendants Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed 

Ryan, Bernard Feldman, Westmoreland, and American Escrow. This was a breach of their 

fiduciary duties because at the same time that they allowed the scheme to move forward, they 

were also the attorneys for their clients, the Plaintiffs, which were victims of the scheme that 

they facilitated. 

135. Defendant Alan Feldman knew that his father, Defendant Bernard Feldman, was a 

disbarred attorney who had also been disciplined by the Florida Department of Financial 

Services for fraudulent activities related to title insurance. Defendant Alan Feldman knew of his 

father’s history of stealing funds from his clients through various means.  

136. Defendant Elias Correa defended Defendant Sandy Hutchens, operating under the 

alias Ed Ryan, in the Leathem Stearn case (in the United States District Court of Colorado, Case 

No. 1:16-cv-01211), which involved allegations of an identical advance fee scheme as the one in 

this matter.  

137. Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, Defendants Alan 

Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, breached their fiduciary duties when they chose to 

withhold critical information from the their clients, the Plaintiffs. 
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138. The breach of fiduciary duty by Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its 

attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, resulted in financial 

injury to Plaintiffs in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate result of the law firm’s 

failure to disclose information known to them, in order to cause Plaintiffs to enter into a sham 

loan transaction and pay advance lender fees. The damages include payments made, debts 

incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost profits, as described above. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees 

pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court deems just and proper 

COUNT IV: VICARIOUS LIABILITY 

(Defendant Lydecker Diaz) 

139. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

140. Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, attorneys at the 

Lydecker Diaz law firm, are the agents of their principal, Defendant Lydecker Diaz. 

141. At all material times hereto, Defendant Lydecker Diaz represented to the 

Plaintiffs, and to the community in general, that Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and 

Richard Lydecker, were partners at the law firm, and had the authority to practice law on behalf 

of clients of the firm.  

142. At all material times hereto, Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, held themselves out to Plaintiffs as having the authority to act for the benefit of their 

principal, Defendant Lydecker Diaz. 
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143. At all material times hereto, Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, in fact had the authority to act for the benefit of their principal, Defendant Lydecker 

Diaz. 

144. Plaintiffs’ belief that Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, in fact had the authority to act for the benefit of their principal, Defendant Lydecker 

Diaz was reasonable.  

145. Plaintiffs reasonably acted on the belief that Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias 

Correa, and Richard Lydecker, in fact had the authority to act for the benefit of their principal, 

Defendant Lydecker Diaz, to their detriment.  

146. Defendant Lydecker Diaz is vicariously liable for the actions, gross negligence, 

and material misrepresentations of Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard 

Lydecker, as more fully set forth above. 

147. The actions of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, 

Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, resulted in financial injury to 

Plaintiffs in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate result of being fraudulently induced 

to enter into a sham loan transaction and pay advance lender fees. The damages include 

payments made, debts incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost profits, as described above. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendant Lydecker Diaz for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, 

interest, costs, attorneys’ fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court 

deems just and proper. 
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COUNT V: NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION 

(Defendant Lydecker Diaz) 

148. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

149. Defendant Lydecker Diaz owed a duty to Plaintiffs as its clients to protect and 

advance Plaintiffs’ rights and objectives. 

150. Defendants Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, were partners at 

Defendant Lydecker Diaz. Accordingly, all of the knowledge obtained by them was imputed to 

Defendant Lydecker Diaz by virtue of their employment with the law firm. 

151. Defendant Lydecker Diaz had a responsibility to use reasonable care to ensure 

that its partners did not misrepresent or intentionally conceal critical information with regards to 

its clients. 

152. Defendant Lydecker Diaz did not use reasonable care when it allowed Defendants 

Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, and Richard Lydecker, to withhold critical information from the 

Plaintiffs during their inappropriate simultaneous representation of Plaintiffs and Defendants 

Westmoreland and Hutchens, operating as Ed Ryan. 

153. As a direct and proximate result of the negligent supervision of Defendant 

Lydecker Diaz, Plaintiffs were induced to enter into a fraudulent advance fee loan scheme with 

known criminals, including Defendant Bernard Feldman, the father of Defendant Alan Feldman. 

154. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant Lydecker Diaz’s negligent 

supervision, Plaintiffs have been damaged in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate 

result of being fraudulently induced to enter into a sham loan transaction and pay advance lender 
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fees. The damages include payments made, debts incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost 

profits, as described above.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendant Lydecker Diaz for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, 

interest, costs, attorneys’ fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court 

deems just and proper.   

COUNT VI: FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION 

(Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, and Elias Correa) 

155. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

156. Defendant Lydecker Diaz, by and through its attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman 

and Elias Correa, made fraudulent misrepresentations of present or past material facts to 

Plaintiffs, including without limitation:  

(a) that the negative articles posted online about Defendant Westmoreland were 

absolutely false and they were in the process of having the false information 

removed from the internet; 

(b) failing to disclose that Defendant Alan Feldman’s father, Defendant Bernard 

Feldman, has a lengthy disciplinary and criminal history of defrauding clients out 

of their money; 

(c) failing to disclose known information that Defendants Westmoreland and Sandy 

Hutchens, operating under the alias Ed Ryan, had been sued for an identical 

advanced fee loan scheme in the United States District of Colorado in which they 
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were represented by Defendant Lydecker Diaz’s attorney, Defendant Elias 

Correa; 

(d) that Defendant Westmoreland did not have the ability to loan funds to the 

Plaintiffs; and 

(e) that Defendant Westmoreland had failed to close loans that the promised to fund 

with other clients of Lydecker Diaz. 

157. The proposed loan transactions were a scheme intended to induce Plaintiffs to 

advance substantial lender fees that Defendants Westmoreland and Sandy Hutchens, under the 

alias Ed Ryan, never intended to return. 

158. The representations made by Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys, 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, were false.  

159. At the time the misrepresentations were made, Defendants Alan Feldman and 

Elias Correa, knew that the statements were false and that they were intentionally omitting 

information that Plaintiffs were entitled to know.  

160. Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, made misrepresentations to Plaintiffs 

with the specific intent that Plaintiffs would rely on the misrepresentations. 

161. Plaintiffs relied upon Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, and Elias 

Correa’s misrepresentations, and were induced to enter into loan commitments that would never 

be consummated, and to pay hundreds of thousands in advance loan fees based upon such 

reliance. 

162. Plaintiffs’ relied upon material representations made by their attorneys 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, their primary attorneys 

for many years, and that reliance was justified.  
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163. Plaintiffs have been damaged in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate 

result of being fraudulently induced to enter into a sham loan transaction and pay advance lender 

fees. The damages include payments made, debts incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost 

profits, as described above. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, and Elias Correa, for compensatory 

damages in excess of $20 million, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, 

and such other relief that this Court deems just and proper.   

COUNT VII: SUCCESSOR LIABILITY 

(Defendant Lydecker LLP) 

164. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraph 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein.  

165. On January 1, 2006, Defendant Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC was 

formed as a Florida limited liability company.  

166. On July 13, 2015, Defendants Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC, and 

Richard Lydecker filed the fictitious name registration for Lydecker Diaz with the Florida 

Department of State, Division of Corporations. 

167. On May 23, 2017, Defendant Richard Lydecker formed Lydecker LLP.  

168. On November 14, 2017, Defendant Richard Lydecker filed an application for 

registration of fictitious name which (a) canceled the fictitious name of Defendant Lydecker, 

Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC D/B/A Lydecker Diaz; and (b) simultaneously registered the 

fictitious name of Lydecker|Diaz. The fictitious name Lydecker|Diaz is owned by Defendant 

Lydecker LLP.   
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169. Lydecker LLP D/B/A Lydecker|Diaz is a mere continuation of Defendant 

Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC D/B/A Lydecker Diaz. While the law firm has changed 

its name, the substance of the law firm has not changed. Defendant Richard Lydecker remains 

the managing member of the law firm, and there is a continuity of assets, control, location, 

management, and personnel. 

170. Defendant Lydecker LLP, D/B/A Lydecker|Diaz, as successor to Defendant 

Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, LLC, D/B/A Lydecker Diaz, is liable for the negligence, 

breaches of fiduciary duty, vicarious liability, negligent supervision, fraudulent 

misrepresentations, and violations of Fla. Stat. §772.103 of Lydecker, Lee, Berga & De Zayas, 

LLC, D/B/A Lydecker Diaz as set forth in paragraphs 112-163 above.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendant Lydecker, LLP D/B/A Lydecker|Diaz, F/D/B/A Lydecker, Lee, 

Berga & De Zayas, LLC, D/B/A Lydecker Diaz for compensatory damages in excess of $20 

million, interest, costs, attorneys’ fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that 

this Court deems just and proper. 

COUNT VIII: FRAUDULENT MISREPRESENTATION 

(Defendants Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, Sandy Hutchens,  
A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow) 

171. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

172. Defendant Westmoreland, by and through Defendant Sandy Hutchens, operating 

under the alias Ed Ryan, made misrepresentations of present or past material facts to the 

Plaintiffs, including without limitation: 
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(a) that the negative articles posted online about Defendant Westmoreland were 

absolutely false and they were in the process of having the false information 

removed from the internet; 

(b) that Defendant Westmoreland had the capacity and ability to loan money to the 

Plaintiffs;  

(c) that Defendant Westmoreland was willing to loan money to the Plaintiffs pursuant 

to the loan commitments; and  

(d) that Defendant Westmoreland would conduct due diligence in good faith with the 

intent of closing and funding the loan. 

173. The proposed loan transactions were a sham intended to induce Plaintiffs to 

advance substantial lender fees that Defendants American Escrow, Westmoreland, Bernard 

Feldman, and Sandy Hutchens, operating under the alias Ed Ryan, never intended to return. 

174. The representations made by Defendants Westmoreland and Sandy Hutchens, 

operating under the alias Ed Ryan, were false. At the time that the false representations were 

made, Defendants Westmoreland and Sandy Hutchens, operating under the alias Ed Ryan, had 

the present intent to never make the loan to the Plaintiffs, and had the present intent to 

permanently deprive Plaintiffs of their money by retaining the advance lender fees on pretextual 

grounds as part of their fraudulent scheme. 

175. Defendants Westmoreland and Sandy Hutchens, operating under the alias Ed 

Ryan, made misrepresentations to Plaintiffs with the specific intent that Plaintiffs would rely on 

the misrepresentations. 
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176. Plaintiffs relied upon Defendants misrepresentations and were induced to make 

the payments, and incur the obligations identified above, and to enter into opportunities to 

acquire new business as described above. 

177. Plaintiffs’ reliance was justified. 

178. Plaintiffs have been damaged in excess of $20 million as a direct and proximate 

result of being fraudulently induced to enter into a sham loan transaction and pay advance lender 

fees. The damages include payments made, debts incurred, lost business opportunities, and lost 

profits, as described above. 

179. The embarrassment of dealing with a fraudulent operation in Westmoreland has 

caused Plaintiff Tal Piccione severe reputational loss and damage. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand entry of 

judgment against Defendants Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed 

Ryan, and Bernard Feldman for compensatory damages in excess of $20 million, interest, costs, 

attorneys’ fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105, and such other relief that this Court deems just and 

proper. 

COUNT IX: VIOLATION OF FLA. STAT. §772.103 
CIVIL REMEDIES FOR CRIMINAL PRACTICES 

 (Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, 
Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow) 

180. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth in 

paragraphs 1 through 111 above, as if fully set forth herein. 

181. At all material times, Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, 

Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, 

associated together in a continuing unit for the common purpose of effecting and profiting from 
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the advance lender fees paid by their victims, including the Plaintiffs, which constituted a pattern 

of criminal activity as that term is defined in §772.102(4) Fla. Stat., in violation of §772.103(1) 

and §772.103(4) Florida Statutes. 

182. At all material times, Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys, Alan 

Feldman and Elias Correa, conspired with each other and with Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy 

Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, to conduct or participate in 

the pattern of criminal activity as proscribed by §772.103(4) Fla. Stat., to conspire or endeavor to 

violate the provisions of §772.103(1). 

183. Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman and 

Elias Correa, together with Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, 

Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, agreed, with criminal intent, to conduct and/or 

participate in a pattern of criminal activity. 

184. The actions set forth above in paragraphs 18-22, and 28-111 were among those 

overt actions described more fully herein taken by Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its 

attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, together with Defendants Westmoreland, 

Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, in furtherance of the 

criminal activity. 

185. The predicate acts of which Plaintiffs complain are set forth below and constitute 

a pattern of criminal activity. 

186. Making False Statements to Obtain Property or Credit - §817.03 Fla. Stat.: 

Defendants Lydecker Diaz through its attorneys Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, together with 

Defendants Westmoreland Equity Fund, LLC, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard 

Feldman, and American Escrow, made or caused to be made multiple false statements, in 
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writing, relating to Defendant Westmoreland Equity Fund’s financial condition, with a 

fraudulent intent of obtaining money from their victims, including the Plaintiffs, as described 

above in paragraphs 50-111. Defendants Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys Alan Feldman and  

Elias Correa, together with Defendants Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, 

Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow did obtain money from their victims, including the 

Plaintiffs, who relied upon such false statements.  

187. Organized Fraud - §817.034(4)(a) Fla. Stat.: The conduct of Defendants 

Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, 

Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, as described herein, constituted an organized scheme 

to defraud. Specifically, each engaged in a systematic, ongoing course of conduct with intent to 

defraud their victims, or with intent to obtain property from their victims, including the 

Plaintiffs, by false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises or willful 

misrepresentations of a future act, in violation of §817.034(4)(a) Fla. Stat. 

188. Communications Fraud - §817.034(4)(b) Fla. Stat.: At all material times, 

Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A 

Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, participated in the criminal activity, and did 

knowingly and intentionally communicate with their victims with intent to obtain property from 

their victims, including the Plaintiffs, in violation of §817.034(4)(b) Fla. Stat. 

189. Compounding Felony - §843.14 Fla. Stat.: At all times, Defendant Lydecker 

Diaz, through its attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, had knowledge of, and 

facilitated continuation of the advance fee lending scheme perpetuated by Defendants 

Westmoreland, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow, 
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which were acts that, if successfully prosecuted, were crimes punishable by imprisonment in 

Florida State prison.  

190. Notwithstanding their knowledge of the criminal nature of the offenses, 

Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys, Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, 

took money, or an engagement therefor, upon an agreement or understanding, expressed or 

implied, to compound or conceal such offense, or not to prosecute therefor, or not give evidence 

thereof. 

191. Each violation of §817.034 and §843.14 set forth above in connection with the 

aforementioned criminal activity constitutes a separate and distinct violation of Chapter 772 Fla. 

Stat. 

192. Had Plaintiffs known of the violations of §817.034 and §843.14, Plaintiffs would 

never have countenanced representation by Defendant Lydecker Diaz, through its attorneys, 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa. 

193. These criminal acts occurred over a period of nearly two years, and occurred 

within five years of one another, which constitute a pattern of criminal activity within the 

meaning of §772.102(4) and §772.103 Fla. Stat. 

194. Plaintiffs were injured in their business or property by reason of these violations 

of Florida law in that, as a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions complained of 

herein, Plaintiffs suffered damages, including but not limited to loss of out-of-pocket expenses, 

lost business opportunities, reputational damages, damage to business relationships with present 

and future clients, and loss of good will among Plaintiffs investors and potential customer base. 



 
 

 
Page 47 of 49 

{10901/00517096.1} 
 

195. By reason of the Defendants’ violation of Chapter 772 Fla. Stat., Plaintiffs are 

entitled, pursuant to §772.104 Fla. Stat. to threefold the damages sustained with interest thereon 

and a reasonable attorney's fee in connection herewith. 

196. At all relevant times, Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, were officers, 

agents, members, managers, or employees of Defendant Lydecker Diaz and were at all relevant 

times engaged on behalf of Defendant Lydecker Diaz in the rendering of professional services. 

197. Pursuant to §621.07 Fla. Stat., Defendant Lydecker Diaz is liable for any 

negligent or wrongful acts or misconduct committed by its officers, agents, members, managers, 

or employees and is therefore vicariously liable for the wrongful and/or negligent conduct of 

Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa complained of herein. The conduct complained of 

herein was at all times was performed in the course of the scope of the employment of each, and 

was performed in furtherance of the business of Defendant Lydecker Diaz. Moreover, the 

conduct of Defendants Alan Feldman and Elias Correa, was authorized by or subsequently 

acquiesced in by partners of Defendant Lydecker Diaz, notwithstanding the conflicts of interest 

inherent in the simultaneous representation of Plaintiffs and Defendants Westmoreland and 

Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan. 

198. Defendant Lydecker Diaz is vicariously liable for the conduct of Defendants Alan 

Feldman and Elias Correa, and for any and all damages proximately caused thereby. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE/Inc., U.S. RE/LLC, and Tal Piccione demand 

judgment against Defendants Lydecker Diaz, Alan Feldman, Elias Correa, Westmoreland Equity 

Fund, LLC, Sandy Hutchens, A/K/A Ed Ryan, Bernard Feldman, and American Escrow & 

Settlement Services, LLC, for threefold damages actually sustained, the costs of the suit, 

reasonable attorneys’ fees, with interest thereon, and for such other and further relief as this 
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Courts deems appropriate pursuant to Chapter 772 Fla. Stat. and for other and further relief as 

this Court may deem just and proper. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs U.S. RE COMPANIES, INC., U.S. RE COMPANIES, LLC, 

and TAL PICCIONE, respectfully requests the following relief against Defendants ALAN 

FELDMAN, individually; ELIAS CORREA, individually; RICHARD J. LYDECKER, 

individually; LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC, D/B/A LYDECKER DIAZ, a 

Florida limited liability company; LYDECKER LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, 

D/B/A LYDECKER|DIAZ, F/D/B/A LYDECKER, LEE, BERGA & DE ZAYAS, LLC D/B/A 

LYDECKER DIAZ; WESTMORELAND EQUITY FUND, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company; SANDY HUTCHENS, A/K/A ED RYAN, individually; BERNARD FELDMAN, 

individually; and AMERICAN ESCROW & SETTLEMENT SERVICES, LLC, a Florida 

limited liability company:  

(a) Compensatory damages in excess of $20,000,000.00; 

(b) Treble damages pursuant to §772.104 Fla. Stat.; 

(c) Prejudgment interest;  

(d) Costs;  

(e) Attorney’s fees pursuant to Fla. Stat. §57.105 and §772.104 Fla. Stat.; and  

(f) Any such additional relief that this Court deems necessary and appropriate. 

RESERVATION OF RIGHT TO SEEK AWARD OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES 

Plaintiffs reserve the right to seek punitive damages against the Defendants upon a 

proffer of evidence pursuant to Fla. Stat. §768.72.   
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs demand trial by jury on all issues so triable.  

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

       HALL, LAMB, HALL & LETO, P.A. 
       2665 South Bayshore Drive, PH-1 
       Miami, Florida 33133 
       TEL. 305-374-5030 
       FAX. 305-374-5033 
             

/s/ Andrew C. Hall      
                                                                                    ANDREW C. HALL 
                                                                               Florida Bar No.: 111480 
       CATHERINE A. MANCING 
                                                                         Florida Bar No.: 0023765 
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